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Situated on the Bailey-Hazen Road in the Town of Peacham, Vermont, the
Elkins Tavern is a three-story, clapboarded,post and beam structure, with
a gabled roof, set on a low stone foundation. The main rectangular
structure is five bays wide and two bays deep. 1In the central bay of the
first story of the main (west) facade is the main entryway, distinguished
by a vernacular Georgian style doorway, characterizedby a full entablature,
supported by two simple fluted pilasters, the whole surmounted by a gable
pediment, presently containing a modern lighting fixture. The door is
multi panelled and a multi-paned..; transom is contained above the door.
The windows on the west elevation are capped by a cornice, each window
framed by a pair of green louvered shutters, the windows on the north and
south facades are also finished in a similar manner. Here, the windows
are of a graduated size according to story, the smallest window found in
the attic of the gabled peak. The North facade contains an entry in the
central bay of the first story. The door surround is a vernacular Federal
type, consisting of a modern colonial door flanked by simple pilasters and
a plain wooden frieze containing an electrical fixture. The south facade,
in terms of fenestration, is similar to the north facade, and contains a
one-story wooden porch, a Twentieth Century addition. A large plate-glass
window replaces an original window on the south-east side on the first floor.

The rear, or eastern elevation, has been the most extensively altered
section of the house. A single story ell is contained on the southern
half of the rear (east) elevation and presently serves as the main service
area of the house. The ell does not date to the time Of construction of
the main tavern. A one-story wagon shed extends from.the rear ell in a
southerly direction.

In terms of the interior, the original Georgian floor plan has been pre-
served; a preservation that includes the original stairhall, wainscoting,
and fireplaces. Eighteenth century vernacular panelling is also found

in the first and second floors in both the northwest and southwest chambers.
The rear, or eastern, kitchen chamber has been altered with an extensive
rebuilding of the kitchen fireplace.

A two-story barn, dating to the second ‘half of the Nineteenth Century,
stands vacant across the street. The original cellar hole of the first
Elkins "Log House" is believed to exist under the front section of the
present barn. '
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3. Elkins, J. Jr., "Copy of Historical Memorandum by Colonel Jonathan
Elkins, Jr."” Handwritten document in Possession of Peacham Historical
Society.

4. McCorison, Marcus A. The Bailey-Hazen Military Road, Norwich, VT.
The Pine Tree Press, 1959.

5. Vermont Historical Society. The Bailey-Hazen Road, The Northeast
Vermont Development Association, Lyndonville, Vermont, 1959.

6. Watts, J. C. & Choate, E. A. People of Peacham. VT Historical
Society, 1965,

7. Professor and Mrs. Walter Bogner, owners of the Elkins Tavern.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

In 1774, General Jacob Bailey of Newbury had been contacted by the proprietors
of Peacham, living in Hadley, Mass., to settle their frontier lands. Bailey |
reportedly made contact with one Jonathan Elkins of Haverhill, New Hampshire,
who found the land suitable for farming, Elkins, the future buildér of the
Tavern, sold his land in Haverhill and moved to Peacham in 1776. The Elkins' |
first shelter, built in 1775, was described by Jonathan Elkins, Jr.,as a

"Log House" covered "with bark" .3

Elking' Tavern was built in 1787 on the Bailey-Hazen Military Road. This
road, started in 1776 after a recommendation from General George Washington,
was to run from Wells River, Vermont,on the Connecticut River, to St. Johns,
Quebec, to aid in the plans to capture Canada as a fourteenth colony. After
the effort in Canada failed, construction on the road immediately stopped
for fear of its being used by the British to stage a counter attack. Work
resumed in 1779 with the Americans' plans for another Canadian campaign.

The road, however, only reached Hazen Notch in Westford, VT, and, although
it never helped the Revolutionary War effort, it did open up the interior
of Northern Vermont for settlement.

Although in its earliest years, the Tavern was well used, subsequent
re-routing of northern traffic isolated the structure on a dirt road,
where it has been fortunately preserved by sensitive owners.

The Tavern is thus significant architecturally in that it contains one of
the better Eighteenth Century interiors still intact in the state of Vermont.
The stairhall and panelling found throughout the interior show a form of
vernacular architecture as it was interpretedand built by the earliest
settlers of the Vermont frontier. Derived stylistically from prototypes of
a higher fashion found in the settlers’original communities, this type of
Vermont vernacular architecture is a definitive statement of the craftsman-
ship and architectural ability of the early settlers of the State of

Vermont. .
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